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Kate Minor


From: Dana Edge
Sent: Monday, January 15, 2018 8:20 AM
To: simpsonc@KGH.KARI.NET; Jennifer Medves; Marcia Finlayson; Michael Kawaja; 


Alexandra Palmeri; president@rts.queensu.ca; president@qmed.ca
Cc: Kate Minor; Christine Mandy
Subject: FW: BHSc Proposal to FB Executive in 2018
Attachments: BHSc Oncampus Full Proposal Jan 12 2018_for FHS FB Exec.docx


Importance: High


Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged


Dear Faculty Board Executive: 
Hope that everyone had an excellent break over the holidays! 
 
I received the request from the Bachelor of Health Sciences program this afternoon for our approval of on-
campus delivery of the BHSc program (see attached document).  Please review and send your vote to me or 
Kate Minor by this Thursday, January 18th at 12 noon. 
 
Thank you in advance, 
 
Dana Edge 
Chair, FHS Faculty Board  
-==--=---==--==--=-= 
 
Dana S. Edge, RN, PhD 
Associate Professor  
School of Nursing, Queen’s University 
82/84 Barrie Street, Room 200 
Kingston, ON K7L 3N6 
 
tel:  (613) 533‐6000 x. 74765 
email:  dana.edge@queensu.ca  
 
 


From: Laura Kinderman <l.kinderman@queensu.ca> 
Date: Friday, January 12, 2018 at 12:53 PM 
To: "dana.edge" <dana.edge@queensu.ca> 
Subject: RE: BHSc Proposal to FB Executive in 2018 
 
Dear Dana, 
  
I’m attaching the proposal. If at all possible, we would appreciate Faculty Board Executive’s decision by next Friday to 
enable us bring the proposal to the full Faculty Board meeting for information and to move forward as a part of the 
February SCAD agenda (if approved).  
  
Many thanks, 
Laura 







2


  


From: Dana Edge  
Sent: December 21, 2017 3:35 PM 
To: Laura Kinderman <l.kinderman@queensu.ca> 
Subject: Re: BHSc Proposal to FB Executive in 2018 
  
Dear Laura: 
Thanks for letting me know – I will be meeting with Dr. Chris Simpson in early January and will alert him to this 
pending proposal that will be going forward to the Faculty Executive Board. 
Have a wonderful holiday! 
 
Dana 
  
  
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
Date: Thursday, December 21, 2017 at 8:49 AM 
To: "dana.edge" <dana.edge@queensu.ca> 
Subject: BHSc Proposal to FB Executive in 2018 
  
Dear Dana, 
 
I wanted to reach out and let you know of our intention to bring a major modification of our BHSc online 
program to Faculty Board Executive for approval in January in the form of an on‐campus BHSc program. 
Knowing that this item may require some deliberation we are endeavouring to get the proposal to you as soon 
as possible! 
  
Many thanks and happy holidays, 
Laura 
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UNDERGRADUATE PROGRAM - MAJOR MODIFICATION PROPOSAL 

AND 

MINOR MODIFICATIONS REQUIRING SENATE APPROVAL

Expedited Approval Submission Form 



This template is to be used when seeking approval for a major modification of an existing undergraduate program or a minor modification requiring Senate approval. Modifications must receive the approval of the Faculty Committee/Board before being submitted to the provost’s office. The provost’s office will send the submission to the secretary of the Senate Committee on Academic Development (SCAD), which will then make their recommendations to Senate. Academic units are strongly advised to contact the appropriate academic dean in their faculty with any questions that arise during this proposal development. Refer also to the QUQAP website for information.



NOTE:  the textboxes in this template will expand as needed.





Part A – General Summary



		Name of Existing Program:



		Bachelor of Health Sciences (Honours and General)



		Academic Unit(s):



		Faculty of Health Sciences



		Proposed Implementation Date:



		September 2019



		

		



		Contact Information (1)

		Contact Information (2)



		Name:



		Michael Adams

		Name:

		Rylan Egan



		Title:



		Director, BHSc program

		Title:

		Director (Education) BHSc program



		Unit:



		Faculty of Health Sciences

		Unit:

		Faculty of Health Sciences



		E-mail:



		adams@queensu.ca

		E-mail:

		eganr@queensu.ca







		Nature of Modification:



		CHECK all that apply










Major Modifications



· Change in a degree designation without a substantial change in program requirements or learning outcomes (e.g. BSc to BNSc)*



· Significant changes to program requirements from those existing at the time of the previous cyclical review (e.g. admission or graduation requirements)



· Significant changes to the program structure (e.g. major changes to courses comprising a significant proportion of the program, typically 35% or less)[Consult with Vice-Provost (Teaching and Learning)]



· Introduction or deletion of a work experience or co-op option, internship or practicum 



· Significant changes to the faculty delivering the program 



· Significant changes to the existing mode(s) of delivery (e.g. different campus, on-line, blended learning, inter-institutional collaborations, etc.)**

 

· Merger of two or more programs



· Introduction of a combined or concurrent program



· Introduction of a dual credential program



· Changes to program content (other than those listed above) that significantly affect the learning outcomes, but do not meet the threshold for a new program



*approval from University Registrar required (see Part C)

**approval from Associate Vice-Principal (Planning and Budgeting) required (see Part C)



		OTHER:

Please describe

		Both an online and an on-campus program are anticipated. 







Minor Modifications Requiring Senate Approval



· Change to program name



		Major Modifications: Description of Existing Program, Nature of the Major Modification, and Rationale for Proposed Change





		Briefly summarize (suggested 1-page maximum) the existing program to be modified, the nature of the proposed major modification, and the rationale for the modification.  Comment on the impact it will have on the structure, Degree Level Expectations, and learning outcomes of the existing program(s) as appropriate. Explain (as appropriate) how the relevant stakeholders (e.g. faculty, staff, students) were consulted in preparing the proposal; and comment on additional resources required to implement the program modification.



		

We currently have an approved online Bachelor of Health Sciences (BHSc) program (honours and general).  This proposal is to request that a direct-entry, on-campus version of the program be approved.  We have been informed that this is a major modification as it entails a change in the mode of delivery of the courses and program and has implications for residence access for the accepted students.  The demand for both an online and an on-campus BHSc program is high as demonstrated in environmental scans conducted by Queen’s Business Consulting (2015) and Academica Group (2017).  In fact, requests for an on campus version of our existing online BHSc has been the number-one request by the students and parents who contact us.  BHSc programs are currently extremely high yield programs across Canada, attracting very high quality students interested in advancing their career opportunities in the health care sector. The Vice-Provost and Dean of Student Affairs has stated that the recruitment data fully supports the concept that an on campus BHSc  program would be highly sought after by highly qualified domestic and international students.  To accomplish this, we are leveraging the very considerable resources and development of courses and the existing BHSc program development team.  The curriculum, degree level expectations, and learning outcomes will remain   the same as the existing approved program.  The discussions regarding this proposal for an on-campus BHSc program have included the Provost, Vice-Provost (Teaching and Learning), the Dean, Vice-Dean (Education) and Associate Dean of Life Sciences and Biochemistry from the Faculty of Health Sciences, the Dean and the Assistant Dean (Studies) from Arts and Science, and the Vice-Provost and Dean of Student Affairs.  We have been informed that the required resources, including teaching faculty, teaching assistants, and classroom space, will be provided within the Faculty of Health Sciences. 









Part B – Evaluation Criteria

To facilitate evaluation of the proposal for a major modification of an existing undergraduate program, only the relevant textboxes below need to be completed (consult with the provost’s office at quqap@queensu.ca to confirm the information required). Academic units should refer to the new undergraduate program template (available here) for details regarding the sections and tables in that template that need to be completed as specified and imported into the relevant sections below. Academic units should bear in mind the diverse groups (e.g. Faculty Board, SCAD, Senate) that will be reviewing their submission and prepare their proposal accordingly. 



* this refers to certificate, diploma or degree as appropriate

		2.1

		Admission Standards - Provide the Program’s admission standards, including degree, diploma or certificate and course requirements and any other specific standards with reference to learning outcomes and expectations of the Program (e.g. Grade 12, undergraduate degree, etc.). If applicable, indicate policies/procedures to encourage applications from qualified under-represented groups (e.g. Aboriginal people, visible minorities or persons with disabilities).



		

The general policies and procedures for admission and appeals for the BHSc program are provided in Appendix A (both online and on campus versions are included).  Entry into the BHSc online program is achieved through one of three streams (direct entry, by transfer, and through the non-degree interest stream), all of which occur during three start cycles per year (Fall, Winter, Spring).  In contrast, entry into the on-campus BHSc will occur only through the OUAC application process or by direct application to Queen’s.  Students will normally start the program in September of each year.



Entry into the BHSc on-campus program will be based on the number of seats allocated to the program and will be achieved through a competitive process of direct entry or by transfer, according to the current BHSc online program regulations (e.g. direct entry from high school will require a minimum high school average of 75%).  As indicated above, admission to the on-campus program will likely be very competitive such that the actual high school admission average required to gain entry will be higher than the minimum average stated in our regulations.  This concept is well known at Queen’s for entry into many programs.



Admission criteria for upper-year post-secondary transfer into the on-campus BHSc degree program will remain the same as that currently outlined in the BHSc admissions regulations.  However, acceptance will be on a competitive basis within the parameters of the on-campus program enrollment caps in place during the application period.















		Significant Changes to the Existing Mode(s) of Delivery 

(e.g. part-time, different campus, on-line, blended learning, inter-institutional collaborations, etc.)





		Information required: As appropriate include Section 3.5 and Section 6 (including subsections). If new faculty associated with change, include Sections as per above.   As appropriate, complete Section 7 including all subsections, and Section 8 plus the Budget Module (Authorization of Associate Vice-Principal, Planning and Budgeting required, Part C)





		3.5

		Part-Time Studies - If the program is offered on a part-time basis, describe how the delivery differs from that of the full-time program and summarize the pathway to completion.



		

		

Students applying to the on-campus program will be expected to be enrolled in full-time study.  While students will normally continue through the program on a full time basis, special circumstances which cause a student to be switched into part-time status will be addressed on a per-case basis.

   



		6.

		Mode of Delivery



		6.1

		Explain how the proposed mode(s) of delivery meets the program learning outcomes and the degree level expectations. Comment on the relationship between mode of delivery and accessibility requirements.



		

		

The delivery of course content will include face-to-face, blended and fully online components.  The on-campus versions of the core courses will normally be delivered in a flipped classroom format, whereas some option courses can either be taken on campus or online.  In each course designed with a flipped delivery format, students will work through online modules (i.e. directed independent learning), which will include written, animated, audio, visual, and video components.  Virtual labs, living and wet labs, and simulations will be key components of some courses and will allow students to apply learned concepts.  These varied modes provide different learning opportunities for the students, and meet both the program learning outcomes, and the degree level expectations.  Students will meet regularly on-campus (1-3 hours per week) to discuss and apply content learned through content-related problems (e.g. small group and case-based learning). The face-to-face interactions will differentiate the on campus version from the online program...



As the BHSc degree program has a competency-based curriculum, all course assessments have been designed to align with the program’s core competencies as well as the course and program learning outcomes.  This will ensure that all BHSc graduates will be proficient in the roles of advocate, collaborator, communicator, leader, professional, and scholar.  



Face-to-face courses taken within the program will uphold Queen’s accessibility standards. For online components of the courses, narration and transcripts will be included with all videos to ensure maximum accessibility. As with the online BHSc, course material will be available in alternative formats.



		6.2

		Distance Delivery - Where students may take the same program, or elements of it, in two different modes of delivery (e.g. online or blended format), indicate how consistency in program requirements and standards will be assured. Describe how a learning community will be fostered among all students and intellectual exchange opportunities within the cohort will be promoted. How will regular interactions with faculty, students, etc., be assured? How will students be supported in their studies and how will they access resources, training opportunities, professional development workshops, etc. 



		

		

A learning community made up of faculty, teaching assistants, and students will be fostered in all BHSc courses, whether they are online only or in a flipped classroom format. This will be accomplished through media such as live videoconferencing, online tutorials and exam preparation sessions, forums, blogs, wikis, and discussion boards in online courses and online components of courses. In our courses that are delivered in a flipped classroom format, building a learning community will also be accomplished through class and/or group discussions, tutorials, problem-solving sessions, debates, and exam preparation sessions. 



Regular interaction between students and (i) peers (group activities, peer evaluation), (ii) between teaching assistants (assignment questions, written feedback on assignments), and (iii) and faculty members will be emphasized. We are committed to maintaining an educational environment that engages all learners, allows for flexibility in learning, and leverages technology in meaningful and strategic ways.   



All students enrolled in either the on-campus or online degree plans in the BHSc program will have access to the same supplementary modules and to a centralized online learning repository containing study guides, videos, library resources, IT help, and other material that is relevant across the program. 







		7.

		Anticipated Enrolment



		7.1

		Describe the recruitment strategy for the program to ensure a strong applicant pool. Indicate how many new students the program will attract to Queen’s, and how many students must be accommodated by other departments/units. Indicate which departments/units will be affected and how.



		

		

The university has agreed to give us 100 students for the on-campus program the make up of those under 100 students has yet to be finalized.  Currently the two options are, 50 domestic and 50 international students, or 75 domestic and 25 international students.   This decision is pending in the near future and is in the hands of the Provost.





		7.2

		In Table 4 below, summarize the projected intake and enrolments by year until steady-state is reached.





		Table 4.  Intake and Enrolment in On-Campus Degree Program (50% domestic; 50% international)



		

		2019

		2020

		2021

		2022



		Program

		

		

		

		



		  

		Intake

		100

		100

		100

		100



		

		Enrolment

		0

		100

		200

		300



		Total Enrolment

		100

		200

		300

		400



		8.

		Resources



		

		Provide evidence that the academic unit(s) has the necessary resources to implement and deliver the proposed new program under the following headings (where applicable). A budget module and template (located on the QUQAP website) must be completed.





		8.1

		Faculty - Comment on the adequacy of the faculty complement to teach and/or supervise in the program and by field as appropriate, AND complete Table 5 below. Submit CVs (following the CV guidelines located on the QUQAP website) for faculty members not listed as core in the new program (core faculty are defined as tenured, tenure-track, continuing adjunct and emeritus faculty). Submission of CVs for core faculty is not required, but may be done at the discretion of the academic unit submitting the proposal, if felt appropriate.



		

		

During the initial design of this program, an environmental scan with respect to Queen’s faculty was performed. Involvement in the program was deemed to be of interest in multiple sectors including: Department of Family Medicine, Office of Global and Population Health, Department of Public Health Sciences, Department of Pathology and Molecular Medicine, Office of Health Sciences Education, School of Rehabilitation Therapy, School of Nursing, and Department of Biomedical and Molecular Sciences. 



One or two instructors will be assigned to teach each course.  The majority of instructors for the program will come from the Queen’s community.  All faculty and TAs involved in teaching on-campus BHSc courses will have appropriate equity and accessibility (AODA) training.  In addition, all faculty in the BHSc program will be invited to a yearly faculty retreat for professional development.  These retreats will include (i) information sessions on possible new approaches, (ii) discussion of outcomes and surveys, (iii) highlighting select individual courses, (iv) overall program reports and (v) updates and workshops on the best tools and strategies for learning.



When a course’s enrolment surpasses 35 students, a teaching assistant (TA) will be added to the course to increase the resources of the teaching team.  Another TA will be added for every additional 25 students enrolled in the course.  TAs will receive specific training for the course with which they are involved with, including the roles they are expected to fulfill and the technology used in the course.  TAs will be trained to grade effectively, to provide students with high quality feedback, and to support students’ competency development. This assessment and communications training will be organized and administered by BHSc program staff in consultation with the faculty member instructing the specific course.





		Table 5. Faculty associated with the proposed program (add additional rows as needed).



		Faculty Member

		Rank/Status

(Tenured, tenure track, continuing adjunct, term adjunct, special appointment, emeritus, etc).

		Field

		Home Unit

		Total Undergrad Teaching

(incl new Program)



		Total Grad Teaching 

		Total Undergraduate Theses Supervised*

		Current  Undergraduate Theses Supervised *



		Abelson, Alan

		Continuing Adjunct Assistant Professor

		Mathematics and Statistics

		Mathematics and Statistics

		9 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Adams, Michael 

		Professor and Head/tenured 

		Pharmacology and Toxicology, Cardiovascular Sciences

		DBMS

		3 x 3 Units

		N/A

		73

		4



		Allingham, John

		Associate Professor/ Tenured

		Biochemistry and Cell Biology

		DBMS

		2 x 3 Units

		N/A

		15

		1



		Atkinson, Jill

		Continuing Adjunct Associate Professor and Chair of Undergraduate Studies

		Psychology 

		Psychology

		1 x 3 Units

1 x 6 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Berkok, Ugurhan

		Term Adjunct Assistant Professor

		Economics

		Economics

		4 x 3 Units

		N/A

		Several

		N/A



		Boehnke, Susan

		Senior Research Associate

		Neuroscience

		Centre for Neuroscience Studies/ DBMS

		1.75 x 3 Units

		N/A

		5

		N/A



		Campbell, Robert

		Adjunct Assistant Professor

		Biochemistry and Cell Biology

		DBMS

		3 x 3 Units

		N/A

		6

		N/A



		Carpenter, Jennifer

		Assistant Professor

		Global and Population Health

		Emergency Medicine

		2 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Carran, John

		Continuing Adjunct Assistant Professor

		Organic Chemistry

		Chemistry

		3 x 3 Units

2 x 6 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Chippindale, Adam

		Professor/ Tenured

		Evolutionary Genetics

		Biology

		2.5 x 3 Units

		1 x 3 Units

		36

		3



		Cline, Cheryl

		Tenured

		Bioethics and Philosophy

		Medicine

		3 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Duan, Qingling

		Assistant Professor/ Tenure Track

		Bioinformatics/ Genomics

		DBMS/ Computing

		2 x 3 Units

		1 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A



		Egan, Rylan

		Adjunct Assistant Professor and Director, Office of Health Sciences Education

		Educational Psychology, Research Methods

		School of Nursing/ Office of Health Sciences Education

		1 x 3 Units

		1 x 6 Units

		N/A

		N/A



		Elbatarny, Hisham

		Adjunct Assistant Professor

		Therapeutics, Drug Development and Human Toxicology

		DBMS

		1.3 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Fanning, Chris

		Professor/Tenured

		English

		English

		1 x 6 Units

		1 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A



		Graham, Charles

		Professor/ Tenured

		Reproduction and Developmental Sciences

		DBMS

		2 x 3 Units

		1 x 3 Units

		31

		2



		Kinderman, Laura

		Adjunct Assistant Professor

		Literature in the Health Sciences, Composition

		DBMS

		2 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Ko, Kenton

		Professor/ Tenured

		Molecular Biology

		Biology

		4 x 3 Units

		1 x 3 Units

		40

		2



		Koti, Madhuri

		Adjunct Assistant Professor

		Cancer Immunology

		DBMS/ Obs/Gyn

		2 x 3 Units

		2 x 3 Units

		2

		1



		Lalonde, Jeffrey

		Adjunct

		Nutrition and Health

		Kinesiology and Health Studies

		2 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		MacKenzie, Leslie

		Associate Professor/ Tenured

		Anatomical Sciences

		DBMS

		4 x 3 Units

		6 x 3 Units

		4

		N/A



		Martin, Nancy

		Associate Professor/ Tenured

		Microbes, Immunity, and Inflammation

		DBMS

		2 x 3 Units

		1 x 3 Units

		21

		N/A



		Martin, Ryan

		Assistant Professor

		Physics 

		Physics

		2 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		May, Robert

		Continuing Adjunct Assistant Professor and Undergraduate Chair

		English

		English

		1 x 3 Units

2 x 6 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Molson, Charles

		Continuing Adjunct

		Mathematics and Statistics

		Mathematics and Statistics

		4 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Morrison, Robert

		Professor/ Tenured

		English

		English

		3 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Mulder, Jeanne

		Adjunct

Assistant Professor

		Therapeutics, Drug Development and Human Toxicology

		DBMS

		2.33 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Tayade, Chandra

		Associate  Professor

		Reproduction and Developmental Sciences

		DBMS

		1 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Ouellette-Kuntz, Helene

		Professor/ Tenured

		Epidemiology

		Public Health Sciences

		1 x 3 Units

		0.2 x 3 Units

		4

		1



		Ozolins, Terence

		Assistant Professor/ Tenured

		Therapeutics, Drug Development and Human Toxicology

		DBMS

		3 x 3 Units

		2 x 3 Units

		8

		2



		Philbrook, Nicola

		Adjunct Assistant Professor

		Therapeutics, Drug Development and Human Toxicology

		DBMS

		2 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Phillips, Susan

		Professor/ Tenured

		Medicine

		Family Medicine and Public Health Sciences

		2.25 x 3 Units

		1 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A



		Pickett, William

		Professor and Head/ Tenured

		Epidemiology

		Public Health Sciences

		2.33 x 3 Units

		1.5 x 3 Units

		18

		2



		Prinsen, Jean

		Adjunct, Lecturer

		Writing Studies

		FAS

		2 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Pruss, Cynthia

		Adjunct Assistant Professor

		Therapeutics, Drug Development and Human Toxicology

		DBMS

		2 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Sheth, Prameet

		Adjunct Assistant Professor

		Clinical Microbiology

		Pathology

		2 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Singh, Marsha

		Associate Professor/Tenured

		Condensed Matter Physics & Optics

		Physics, Engineering Physics & Astronomy

		1 x 3 Units

1 x 6 Units

		N/A

		25

		2



		Szewczuk, Myron

		Professor/ Tenured

		Microbes, Immunity, and Inflammation

		DBMS

		3 x 3 Units

		1 x 3 Units

		22 (since 2008)

		4



		Sheth, Prameet

		Assistant Professor

		Microbiology

		Pathology/DBMS

		3 x 3 Units

		N/A

		5

		N/A



		Walker, Stephen

		Teaching Fellow

		Chemistry

		Chemistry/ CDS

		2 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Ward, Christopher

		Associate Professor/ Tenured

		Experimental Medicine

		DBMS

		1 x 3 Units

2 x 6 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Van Staalduinen, Laura

		Adjunct Assistant Professor

		Biochemistry and Cell Biology

		DBMS

		1.33 x 3 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		Vos, Lori

		Term Adjunct

		Writing Studies

		Continuing and Distance Studies

		3.0 Units

		N/A

		N/A

		N/A



		

		*Indicate primary supervisor by asterisks 



		

		



		8.3

		Staff - Comment on the adequacy of the staff complement to support the program (administrative, technical, IT, laboratory, etc.).



		

		

The following positions, previously included in the online program submission, will support the sustainability and ongoing development of the BHSc program (both online and on-campus):



· Program Co-Directors (2): Responsible for overall program execution, management, and quality.

· Associate Director (1):  Responsible for managing and coordinating members of the BHSc staff and reporting to the program directors.

· Associate Director (Studies, Admissions) (2):  Responsible for dealing with all program study matters, including student appeals, etc.

· Program Assistant (2):  Responsible for ensuring day-to-day operations are organized, including supporting work with financial services, human resources, answering student inquiries, and other administrative services.

· Program Development Associates (4): Responsible for facilitating the development of the program and course approvals (part time positions, currently filled by recent PhD graduates of the DBMS Graduate Program)

· Track Coordinators (6):  Responsible for managing and coordinating courses within each learning track of the BHSc program (similar to current Undergraduate Chairs) 

· Molecular Basis of Biology

· Anatomical and Physiological  Basis of Health and Disease

· Infection, Immunity, and Inflammation

· Pharmacology, Toxicology, and Therapeutics

· Global and Population Health

· Applied Research Methods in Health Sciences

· Instructional Designers (3 at steady state):  Responsible for integration of digital curriculum supplied by subject matter experts into onQ (design and redesign)

· Instructional Design Assistants (1.5 per course under development):  Responsible for assisting faculty in development of course material.

· Students hired on a casual basis.

· Graphic Designer (1, once steady-state is achieved):  Responsible for developing graphics, diagrams, and appearance of digital curriculum supplied by subject matter experts (works closely with instructional designer).

· Entrada Development Team:  Responsible for developing software for competency-based tracking of curriculum.

· Business Analyst/Project Manager: This position resides within the FHS EdTech team.  Coordinate Entrada development and instructional design.

· Web Developers/ Designers (2):  Perform coding necessary for educational tracking of program.

· IT and Course Support: Responsible for supporting and resolving IT issues.





		8.4

		Space Requirements - Describe the work space, laboratory space, office, classroom and equipment needed to support students’ scholarship and research activities.



		

		

For on-campus laboratory courses, laboratory space within the Department of Biomedical and Molecular Sciences, including the William J. Henderson Anatomy Museum, Dissection Labs, and Life Sciences Laboratories, will be used.  All of the mentioned laboratory space is associated with the Queen’s University’s New Medical School building.  Laboratory courses will not interfere with existing Queen’s classes and programs that make use of these spaces, as they will be used in the summer months only. 



Work space and classroom space will be need for the on-campus program.  In particular, small group learning space in which students can work in groups of 5-7 will be needed for the cohort of 100 students each year.    



The office space that is being made available in Botterell Hall is sufficient for all Faculty and Staff involved with the BHSc program, and there is potential for growth.





		8.5

		Information Technology - Describe the information technology needed to support students’ scholarship and research activities.  Indicate the resource implications for hardware, software/internet, audio-visual, telecommunications, etc.



		

		

The learning management system, onQ, will facilitate students’ experience within the program by providing a virtual home base for all learning activities. The Entrada platform is being developed to connect with onQ, to provide unique tracking and assessment functionality to the BHSc program, as it offers exceptional customized curriculum mapping, reporting, ePortfolio, assessment, and evaluation features which support the competency framework. As with the online program, examinations are delivered through the RP Now remote proctoring system and Entrada.   



onQ will be available 24 hours/day, 7 days/week to students with access to broad bandwidth Internet and a web-capable and web-streaming computer (eg. Mac OS, Windows: XP/Vista/Windows 7/Windows 8, Pentium III 1 GHz processor, 256 MB RAM, Soundcard with speakers and microphone or preferably a headset).  Access to speakers, a microphone, and a built-in web camera is required to be able to participate in online discussions and tutorials. Some assignments will require the use of web-based conferencing software.



Guided videos will be available to students at all times, demonstrating how to log in, access important information, and use the online system. 



General technical support will be available for students Monday through Friday (8:30AM-4:30PM, ET) by telephone, by help forum, or by online request form with a response time of 24 hours or less. For students with unique software and hardware issues, IT support will be available to provide assistance on an ongoing basis, delivering an additional layer of technical support.





		8.6

		Library - Provide information about library support holdings, availability of and access to library resources relevant to the proposed program(s).



		

		

All students enrolled in the on-campus BHSc program, and all faculty and staff involved in its development, will have unlimited access to Queen’s University Library (QUL) resources both on-campus and through use of the Queen’s University web proxy service. This will include access to all research databases and search engines, journal subscriptions, the Queen’s University Library Catalogue (QCAT), the Queen’s Research and Learning Repository (QSpace), and the Inquiry Toolkit for Online Learning Environments. In addition, reference services and research assistance are available in-person, via email, and by phone to allow students to consult with a librarian.  QUL provides online news updates via email to keep students, faculty and staff up to date with newest QUL resources, workshops, and services.





		

		Indicate what new library resources will be needed (e.g. journals, print monographs, audio-visual material, historical documents, electronic databases, statistical/geospatial data)



		

		

All current online courses are well supported by current Queen’s University Library (QUL) resources. QUL collects materials for the Departments of Mathematics, Economics, English, Psychology, Biology, Chemistry, and the School of Medicine (allied with Health Studies). This interdisciplinary mix of resources is highly relevant to the BHSc program. Since many BHSc program courses are currently offered online, QUL will not require the acquisition of new library resources for this program.



Additional courses are currently in development. It is anticipated that they will require the same access to information resources as is currently supplied by QUL. Where access to additional library resources is needed for a particular course, librarians will be consulted.





		

		Indicate the likelihood of the program having an impact on library staffing.  Provide date that consultation with library staff took place. 



		

		

Information literacy is a fundamental academic skill that students will develop in this program. Librarians will work closely with students and faculty in this program to determine the information literacy learning needs of the program as it evolves and to create appropriate online supplementary modules and tools that will go in a centralized resource repository. Several of these modules exist already (e.g. plagiarism, scholarly vs. non-scholarly resources). No doubt, there will be an impact on library staffing, especially as the program grows. The Library will need to review and evaluate the need for additional librarian time.

 

Consultation with Suzanne Maranda, Head Librarian of Bracken Health Sciences Library, began in December 2017 and will be ongoing.





		8.7

		Research Funding – If applicable to proposed program, provide evidence of adequate research funding to sustain the research activities of undergraduate students. Complete Table 6 (below) as relevant.



		

		

This is not a research-based program; therefore, research funding is not required unless a student selects an independent research project (currently these are minimally funded within the Life Science and Biochemistry programs).





		Table 6. Research funding (operating) by source (do not include conference grants, SSHRC minor grants or equipment grants).  Include last 3 years only.





		Year

		Field

(if applicable)

		Federal Granting Council

		Other Peer Reviewed

		Contracts

		Other



		2010-11

		

		

		

		

		



		2009-10

		

		

		

		

		



		2008-09

		

		

		

		

		



		

		



		8.8

		Describe any additional resources required that are not currently available. Provide evidence of institutional commitment to supplement existing resources as needed (See budget module).



		

		

The Dean of the Faculty of Health Sciences has agreed that there will be appropriate allocation of resources in the form of teaching faculty, teaching assistants and classroom space.  The space requirement for the small group learning sessions has already been resolved within the current footprint and renovations are in the planning stages.  

There is strong support for the program, from the Vice-Dean and Director of the School of Nursing, the Vice-Dean (Health Sciences) and Director of the School of Rehabilitation Therapy, the Head of the Department of Family Medicine, and the Head of Public Health Sciences. 

	























Part C - Authorizations





Note: Refer to Part B for necessary authorizations 





		



Department Head(s)





		







Signature

		







Date



		



Faculty Dean(s) (or delegate)





		







Signature

		







Date



		Associate Vice-Principal, Planning and Budgeting (if applicable)

		







Signature

		







Date



		



Vice-Provost and University Librarian (if applicable)



		







Signature

		







Date



		



University Registrar





		







Signature

		







Date



		

Provost and Vice-Principal (Academic)



		





Signature

		





Date



		

Date approved by Faculty Board(s)/Committee(s)



		

Faculty of Health Sciences Undergraduate Curriculum Committee:



Faculty of Health Sciences Faculty Board Executive:



		



December 13th, 2017







		

Date Approved by SCAD



		

		



		Date Approved by Senate
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Kate Minor


From: Dana Edge
Sent: Friday, January 19, 2018 10:58 AM
To: Laura Kinderman
Cc: Kate Minor
Subject: BHSc Proposal


Importance: High


Dear Laura: 
The FHS Faculty Board Executive have approved the BHSc Proposal, so you can now submit to SCAD. 
Thank you, 
 
Dana Edge 
Chair, FHS Faculty Board  
-==-=--=-=-=-=-==-=--=-==- 
 
Dana S. Edge, RN, PhD 
Associate Professor  
School of Nursing, Queen’s University 
82/84 Barrie Street, Room 200 
Kingston, ON K7L 3N6 
 
tel:  (613) 533‐6000 x. 74765 
email:  dana.edge@queensu.ca  
 
 





